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LIFE-STAGE SEGMENTATION: AN EFFECTIVE TOOL FOR AUDIENCE GROWTH STRATEGIES

By Barbara Cohen and Craig Kaczorowski

Executive Summary

In a rapidly changing media environment, where choice, convenience and control are now defi ning consumer 
behavior, newspapers must adopt new strategies and build new products to successfully expand their audience.

Why should newspapers change how audience development is conducted?  Past approaches focused on im-
proving existing products or creating new products based on broad demographic segments have not produced 
much innovation. Few new, profi table products have been introduced into the market, nor have most newspa-
pers been successful in attracting new and under-served customers.

Th e NAA/ASNE Audience Development Initiative, in partnership with Kannon Consulting of Chicago, has 
been focused on life-stage segmentation as a framework for developing new audience-building strategies.  Th e 
material presented in this report serves as a follow-up to Using Life-stage segmentation to Drive Strategies, a white 
paper published by the NAA’s Audience Development Initiative in 2006. For more information on the Initiative, 
visit www.growingaudience.com.

Th is report provides an overview of fi ve major action steps to address consumer needs and identify successful 
audience-growth strategies through life-stage segmentation.  Th e fi ve action steps are:

    1) Segment current and prospective customers across three key components:  age, presence of children 
in the household and income.  
• Life-stage segmentation serves as a good model because it provides intuitive segments that are easy to  

 create, understand and communicate.  Furthermore, life stage oft en determines purchasing and deci 
 sion-making behavior. 

• Th e basic premise behind life-stage segmentation is that having children is a major milestone; therefore,  
 the data set is divided into three categories: those who have not yet had children; those who have chil 
 dren under eighteen at home; and those whose children have grown and left  the home.

• Next, within each group, consumers can be sorted into smaller, and more easily targeted, segments  
 based on their household-income levels:  upper, middle and lower.

    2) Once the life-stage segmentation scheme has been established, an understanding of these segments 
needs to be built, beyond just their demographics and newspaper readership behavior, the traditional areas 
typically covered by newspaper research.

• Market information needs to be analyzed to provide insight about consumer behaviors and attitudes.  
• Investments in systems and data may be necessary in order for newspaper companies to know their  

 customers intimately and create a strong connection to local consumers.  
• A customer-centric database system will allow newspapers to tailor their products and services to meet  

 the changing needs of advertisers.  
• Because not all newspapers can aff ord to invest in new research and analyses, NAA—as a starting 
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point—has developed a profi le of nine market segments based on national data from a variety of studies. Th at analysis is 
available at www.growingaudience.com.

    3) It is impossible to serve all life-stage segments equally; therefore, a prioritization process needs to be con-
ducted to identify the target customers and product/services where unmet needs (or “jobs to be done”) can be met 
most profi tably.  For example, upper- and middle-income families may represent an opportunity in many markets.

• When high-priority target segments are identifi ed and clearly understood, the organization can make better re 
 source-allocation decisions and become more consumer-centric across all functions and at all levels.

• A prioritization framework generally has two dimensions – Segment Attractiveness and Competitive Position  
 – which life-stage segments are plotted along.  

• Th erefore, high-priority segments are attractive to any media or marketing services organization and the newspa 
 per company is competitively positioned to meet their needs relative to the competition.  

    4) With these life-stage priorities in place, a product portfolio needs to be developed based on an understanding 
of the channel and content that is most relevant to specifi c segments. 

• Once priority segments have been identifi ed, products and services need to be developed which will meet the  
 news, information, and advertising needs of each segment and add value to their lives through all available channels. 

• Th erefore, newspaper companies will need to create and maintain a multi-channel, multi-platform product portfo 
  lio in which the core newspaper becomes one among many products, each with a concisely defi ned role and cus 
 tomer target.  

• Some of these off erings may need to be branded separately from the newspaper, while others will maintain a  
 strong branded linkage to the parent company.

• Investments should be made wisely to achieve solid reach across priority segments with products and services  
 that engage consumers and help grow the businesses of advertisers seeking local audiences.

    5) It is important to recognize that this approach is very diff erent from the way newspapers have traditionally 
gone about audience development and will require a change management process to be put in place.

• In order to change the output of an organization, a company must change the work.  Th at is, the day-to-day activi 
 ties expected of employees must be reinvented to achieve the updated strategic goals of the organization.

• One of the most eff ective ways to change the work of an organization is through a process called “task alignment.”   
 Task alignment involves identifying the work steps that need to be accomplished in order to meet the new strate 
 gic objectives of the organization, and then breaking those steps into “activities.”  

• Only by changing the work – and being prepared to do so routinely – will newspaper companies be able to  
 achieve the nimble, dynamic, customer-centric approach that is necessary to survive in today’s competitive mar 
 ketplace.

A truly customer-focused approach requires organizations to move from a product-centric view of their audience to a 
complete customer-centric view of all products, services and relationships. Although deeply-entrenched business practic-
es may need to be overhauled, and investments made, such a multi-dimensional view, centered on life stages, may enable 
companies to increase customer loyalty, improve customer service, and boost productivity and profi tability.

 

http://www.growingaudience.com
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Life-stage Segmentation Action Steps

1) Segment current and prospective customers across three key components:  age, presence of children in 

the household and income.  

While there are many ways to segment newspaper customers, we recommend life stage as an actionable starting point.  
Life-stage segmentation serves as a good model to be used by organizations that are new to segmentation because it pro-
vides intuitive segments that are easy to create, understand and communicate.  

Furthermore, the basic premise behind life-stage segmentation is that having children is a major milestone that funda-
mentally impacts the way consumers spend money and their free time.  For example, when young people leave the family 
home, when a couple has their fi rst child, when people retire, their priorities change.  Th is can have a powerful infl uence on 
how they transact with media and advertisers. 

In addition, newspaper competitors, such as magazines, cable and network television, and radio, have integrated the use 
of life-stage analyses into their audience growth strategies to increase both consumer and advertiser share of the market.  
For example, in the crowded magazine category of home and design, publications such as Dwell and Ready Made target 
young, upper- and middle-income readers, while content and advertising in Home & Design or Architectural Digest skew 
more mature; households with children, especially middle-income families, are the targets of such publications as Good 
Housekeeping and Ladies Home Journal.

Many advertisers—especially newspaper advertisers in such key sectors as automotive, retail, fi nancial, and hospitality—
also speak in terms of consumer life stages and oft en rely on life-stage segmentation schemes as the cornerstone of their 
marketing strategies.  For example, automotive manufacturers and dealers oft en use life-stage analyses to identify grow-
ing families that need and can aff ord to upgrade to more value-added vehicles.  Th ey also use life-stage segmentation to 
fi nd younger, fi rst-time buyers with the funds to purchase luxury vehicles, and to create retention programs for long-term, 
high-potential customers.  

Most smart retailers—who have hundreds, if not thousands, of customers—understand that it is not worthwhile to 
market to every single one.  Marketing strategies based on life stages have helped retailers identify customers and prospects 
with the spending power and propensity to buy their brand; gain share of wallet and improve customer loyalty among 
families that spend disproportionately in certain categories; and determine which fi rst-time shoppers desire special, prefer-
ential treatment.

As a starting point for newspapers, we have divided consumers into three categories: those who have not yet had chil-
dren; those who have children under eighteen at home; and those whose children have grown and left  the home.  

For example, one segment of young consumers would broadly represent singles and couples who are under 45-years-old 
and child-free. A second segment, called family, would be composed of all adult consumers, regardless of their age, who 
have children under age 18 living at home. A third group that we call mature would broadly encompass all consumers who 
are 45 years or older and have no children under age 18 living with them at home.  

Next, within each group, consumers can be sorted into smaller, and more easily targeted, segments based on their house-
hold-income levels:  upper, middle and lower. [See Figure 1]

http://www.growingaudience.com
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  Figure 1: Life-stage Demographic Defi nitions, 2005
 Source: Synovate Consumer Opinion Panel, 2005 (N = 3,039)

While this example shows nine segments, the number of life-stage segments can be adjusted based upon marketplace 
demographics or the number of respondents within a given data set.  

Given the abundance of news and information sources consumers have access to, and the recent trends in declining 
circulation and newspaper’s share of advertiser spending, newspaper companies should begin routinely to segment current 
and prospective customers based on age, presence of children in the household, and income.  Th en, sales eff ectiveness, ser-
vice diff erentiation and customer contact strategies can be organized around these segments.  Life-stage segmentation can 
also enable more eff ective allocation of marketing spending with the ultimate benefi t of delivering greater ROI.

2) Once the life-stage segmentation scheme has been established, an understanding of these segments 

needs to be built, beyond just their demographics and newspaper readership behavior, the traditional areas 

typically covered by newspaper research.

Once life-stage segments have been defi ned, market information needs to be analyzed to provide insight about consumer 
behaviors and attitudes. Newspaper companies oft en have a somewhat limited reservoir of market data sources on hand.  
Consumer demographic information, such as population growth, race/ethnicity, age, household composition (e.g., single, 
single parent, couple with children), and median household income are readily available.  Housing market data is also 
generally accessible, such as median home prices, number of new and previously-owned homes sold, and types of dwelling 
(e.g., single-family dwelling).

Such information is publicly available from government sources and should be used to augment marketplace data you 
may already possess.  For more information, go to:

• U.S. Census Bureau (www.census.gov)
• Bureau of Labor Statistics (www.stats.bls.gov)
• Bureau of Economic Analysis (www.bea.doc.gov)
• National Center for Education Statistics (www.nces.ed.gov)
• Statistical Abstract of the United States (www.census.gov/compendia/statab)
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Of course, daily and Sunday newspaper readership and purchase behavior is also readily available, in part, via ABC 
reports.  Such information, coupled with consumer demographics, can be used to build an understanding of life-stage seg-
ments.  

Newspapers may also need to invest in additional research or access syndicated studies to build a deeper profi le of con-
sumer segments.  For example:

• Scarborough Research measures the lifestyle and shopping patterns, media behaviors, and demographics of con  
 sumers

• MediaMark Research collects comprehensive data on the adult population of the United States, such as demo  
 graphics, product usage and media exposure

• Th e Synovate Consumer Opinion panel can also be purchased.  Survey questions range from attitudes on shopping  
 to morals and ethics; interest across multiple leisure activities; consumer-products purchasing behavior; and media  
 usage.  

As part of this initiative, Kannon Consulting analyzed research from Synovate, conducted on behalf of advertising agency 
DDB Worldwide, for 1995, 2000 and 2005.  Although analyzed at the national level, it may provide insights on segment 
behavior in your own market.  You can review that analysis at the Growing Audience Web site. 

Newspaper companies can also make use of the NAA’s market research, such as the 2006 study How America Shops 
and Spends, which was designed to help retailers and advertisers better understand consumer shopping attitudes and 
behavior, and how those attitudes and behavior interact with advertising.  Th e Consumer Usage of Newspaper Advertising 
Study, also conducted in 2006, was developed to give newspapers a better understanding of how consumers use advertis-
ing inserts that are delivered in their newspapers, with regard to alternative options, including direct mail and the Internet.  
Also in 2006 the NAA published the Power User Study, to help understand the continuing evolution of newspaper web site 
audiences in the areas of media usage, content preferences, advertising, and online commerce.  In 2005, the NAA Reader 
Engagement Study was conducted to understand how and why readers are engaged with newspapers versus other media.  
A life-stage segmentation analysis was conducted on all these studies and is synthesized in one comprehensive PowerPoint.

Moving beyond shopping behavior and traditional media usage, what other information might be essential to developing 
a richer understanding of key life-stage segments?  Additional information newspaper companies may want to know for 
eff ective customer growth and retention strategies and successful new product development include:

• Consumers’ interest in or degree to which they “need to get” news and information every day.
• Frequency of Internet usage and sources used (e.g., Google, local newspaper site) for local news and information.
• Types of local news, shopping/advertising and entertainment information sought online versus newspapers.
• Entertainment technology adoption and ownership and penetration of web-enabled mobile devices.
• Attitudes across media in general on advertising information (e.g., value in planning shopping, ease of use, most   

 believable/trustworthy, most up-to-date).
• Attitudes toward newspapers specifi cally (e.g., community involvement, newspapers as a “good value,” emotional   

 connection, comparison to other media).

Th e goal is to make these segments “come to life” within the organization.  Consumers’ “need to know” within a segment 
and their competitive media usage for news and information is vital in creating successful strategies to provide segments 
with the tools to help them get their jobs done:

• Are consumers within a segment assembling their own information packages, becoming more active participants   
 in the exchange of news and ideas?

• Are they high-Internet users?
• How, and more important, when are they accessing this information and why?

http://www.growingaudience.com
http://www.naa.org/advertiser/Consumer-Usage-Report.pdf
http://www.naa.org/advertiser/Consumer-Usage-Report.pdf
http://www.naa.org/research/america-shops-and-spends.pdf
http://www.naa.org/research/america-shops-and-spends.pdf
http://www.digitaledge.org/SpecialReports/PowerUsers2006.aspx
http://www.naa.org/research/newspaper-reader-engagement-06.pdf
http://www.naa.org/research/newspaper-reader-engagement-06.pdf
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Th is is especially important to know, given the increased broadband penetration, even among mature households.  Such 
knowledge can help newspapers rethink Internet strategies that will protect their share of consumers’ time during essential 
day-parts, such as Sunday morning, and facilitate retaining the newspapers’ share of advertising spending. 

Newspapers can turn audience insight into a competitive advantage.  Investments in systems and data may be necessary 
in order for newspaper companies to know their customers intimately and create a strong connection to local consumers.  
A customer-centric database system will allow newspapers to tailor their products and services to meet the changing needs 
of customers.  Th e promise of off ering one-to-one customizable targeted advertising and marketing programs can only 
become an actionable reality by having rich information on which to bundle diff erent off erings.

 

3) It is impossible to serve all life-stage segments equally; therefore, a prioritization process needs to be 

conducted to identify the target customers and product/services where unmet needs (or “jobs to be done”) 

can be met most profi tably.  For example, upper- and middle-income families may represent an opportunity in 

many markets.

As the next step, newspapers should set priorities and formulate strategies that address the most valuable segments.  No 
organization can serve all of the people all of the time; however, knowledge of the market’s structure allows you to address 
it selectively.  When high-priority target segments are identifi ed and clearly understood, the organization can make better 
resource-allocation decisions and become more consumer-centric across all functions and at all levels.  Th erefore, a priori-
tization framework should be developed to focus strategic thinking and guide resource allocation.  A segmentation frame-
work can provide actionable information to aid circulation, advertising, marketing and product development strategies.  

A prioritization framework generally has two dimensions – Segment Attractivness and Competitive Position – which 
life-stage segments are plotted along.  [See Figure 2]
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                                           Figure 2:  Strategic Prioritization Framework
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Th e vertical axis of the framework is Segment Attractiveness.  Here, each life-stage segment is evaluated on its attractive-
ness to any media or advertising organization, independent of the newspaper company.  Th e horizontal axis of the frame-
work is Competitive Position.  Here, each life-stage segment is based on the newspaper company’s current ability to meet 
the segment’s needs relative to competition.

Both Segment Attractiveness and Competitive Position measures can be determined by research identifi ed in the last sec-
tion or by proprietary research conducted in your market.  

Potential criteria and data measures are included in the chart below. Newspapers should identify consumer segments that 
index high on relevant “attractiveness” and “competitive position” measures.

      Segment Attractiveness    
Criteria and Illustrative Measures 

Size

•  Estimated size of lifestage segment households in the      
      market.

Internet Usage

•  Percent of consumers who accessed the Internet, either                                                                                              
      from home or work, in the past 30 days.

•  Among Internet Users, percent with broadband access.

Advertising Attractiveness

•  Consumers’ estimated household income.

•  Percent of consumers who own their residence. 

•  Percent of consumers who shopped in a store in the   
       past seven days.

•  Percent of consumers who spent more than $500 in  
       stores in the past seven days.

•  Among Internet Users, percent who shopped online 
   for anything in past 30 days.

•  Among Internet Users, percent who spent over $500   
       shopping online in past 30 days.

      Competitive Position    
Criteria and Illustrative Measures 

Relationship with Core Newspaper

•  Percent of consumers who read their local daily news 
       paper “yesterday.”

•  Percent of consumers who read their local Sunday                           
       newspaper “last week.”

Relationship with Newspaper Website

• Percent of consumers who visited newspaper website  
      in past 30 days

Relationship with Newspaper Preprints

•  Percent of newspaper readers who say they “always   
       read/look at” newspaper preprints. 

•  Percent of Preprint Users who checked for sales in local   
       stores or compared prices for items looking to buy in               
       the past seven days.

Attitudes Toward News/Newspapers

•  Agreement to attitude statements regarding news in  
       general (e.g., need to get the news everyday; important                                                                                           
       to be up-to-date)

•  Agreement to attitudes statements regarding the   
       newspaper (e.g., help in knowing more about community;                                                                                          
      good value; most trustworthy medium; would miss read 
      ing if taken away; good use of time)

http://www.growingaudience.com
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Each data point corresponding to a segment – across both the Segment Attractiveness and Competitive Position axes 
– is then rated using a nine-point scale, with 1 as least attractive and 9 as most attractive.  It is important to note that rat-
ings are relative to the other segments and are not in the absolute.

High-priority segments will emerge in the “Defend and Grow” quadrant; that is, these segments are both attractive 
to any media or marketing services organization and the newspaper company is competitively positioned to meet their 
needs relative to the competition.  Secondary segments may place in the “Invest to Grow” quadrant, while niche segments, 
where new products and business models may need to be implemented, will emerge in the “Build New Approaches” quad-
rant.

As an illustrative example of how the Strategic Prioritization Framework can help newspapers set priorities across the 
life-stage segments, publicly available information, at a national level, was gathered.  Information such as segment size, 
Internet usage, broadband penetration and shopping behavior (both bricks-and-mortar and online) was used as criteria 
to measure Segment Attractiveness.  Information such as “need to get the news everyday,” Sunday and weekly newspaper 
readership, newspaper web site usage, newspaper usage for shopping purposes and newspaper preprint usage was col-
lected to measure Competitive Positioning. 
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 Figure 3:  Illustrative Life-stage Prioritization
Source:  Synovate Consumer Opinion Panel; MediaMark Research, MORI Research, 2005-2006.  Bubble size represents relative 
size of segments by household.

As shown in the example, Upper- and Middle-Income Families emerged as high-priority segments. Such family seg-
ments are oft en time-pressured; therefore, newspaper organizations should invest in improving quick, easy interactions 
with customers across all levels. Everything from online requests and confi rmations for vacation stops, to customized 
content and subscription by section, may need to be accommodated in the future.  In many markets, family segments live 
outside the primary, urban geographical area addressed by the core newspaper; therefore, an alternative suburban daily 
may need to be developed to meet their community news and information needs.

http://www.growingaudience.com
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Newspaper companies may also want to target, secondarily or simultaneously, Upper- and Middle-Income Young seg-
ments, with new tactics that address investments needed to improve the newspaper’s competitive positioning.  While all 
strategies developed by newspaper organizations must take the growth of the Internet into account, audience strategies 
for the Young segments – in which Internet usage already outpaces newspaper readership – must proactively address this 
trend. New products and services for this audience should either be online or refl ect the features and benefi ts that these 
online-focused segments have come to expect.  

Additionally, for consumers within these segments, news may not be the main element that they are seeking when mak-
ing media selections. Newspaper companies may need to compete by developing and promoting other services they off er, 
such as advertisements, non-news information, or even games. Ultimately, to win, newspapers may need to be about more 
than news.

Resource allocation priorities and product strategies eventually emerge from the segmentation and prioritization model.  
Companies may need to dedicate further resources in smart, practicable market research, both quantitative and qualitative.  
Product portfolios and marketing strategies will then need to be created to meet the needs of priority segments to help 
them get crucial “jobs” done.

4) With these life-stage priorities in place, a product portfolio needs to be developed based on an un-

derstanding of the channel and content that is most relevant to specifi c segments. One critical question to be 

asked is where does the newspaper and other newspaper-centered products fi t into this portfolio.

Once priority segments have been identifi ed, products and services should then be developed which will meet the news, 
information and advertising needs of each segment and add value to their lives through all available channels.  Existing 
products may need to be modifi ed, while new and diff erentiated ones may need to be developed.  

Th erefore, newspaper companies will need to create and maintain a multi-channel product portfolio in which the core 
newspaper becomes one among many products, each with a concisely defi ned role and customer target.  Multiple geo-
graphic defi nitions may be crucial, and should include core counties within the Newspaper Designated Market as well as 
strategic counties outside the NDM.  

Th e product portfolio should address daily and Sunday print products, through both paid and free publications targeted 
to priority segments, especially those audiences not typically reached, or under-served, by the core newspaper.  An alterna-
tive to the core Sunday newspaper may also need to be developed; multiple alternative products may be necessary, depend-
ing on targets and their needs.  Digital products, both web-based and mobile, should address information and entertain-
ment needs, which may need to be branded separately from the core newspaper web site.  [See Figure 4]

As newspapers consider multiple products to support diff erent segments, it is important to note that the equity of the 
traditional brand cannot go everywhere.  By defi nition, if an organization has a brand, then it stands for something.  Th at 
brand should only be used where that “something” is valuable; otherwise, the brand becomes diluted.  When extending 
the brand or developing new products, ask yourself, “Will the core brand enhance the extension?”  If the core brand could 
possibly harm or dilute the extension, then create a new brand and defi ne its relationship to the core.  If, on the other hand, 
you determine the brand will in fact enhance the extension, go another step further and ask yourself, “Will the extension 
enhance the core brand?”  Of course you never want to harm or dilute your core brand; therefore, if the extension will not 
enhance that brand, then the creation of a new one becomes imperative.

http://www.growingaudience.com
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           Segment    Young             Family                    Mature 

Geographic     Primary           Extended            Primary            Extended  Primary              Extended 

 Defi nitions

  • Free Pub       • Free         • Free Pub • Suburban  • Core Paper   • Suburban
               Suburban Pub           Daily               Daily
   • Free                  • Free   
   Daily Spanish Pub  • English-         Spanish Pub • English-
             language             language 
Print             Hispanic Pub    Hispanic Pub  
 
   • Core Paper    • Sunday         • Core Paper   • Sunday • Core Paper   • Core Paper
 Sunday              Alternate     Alternate
  • Sunday                • Sunday
  Alternate                Alternate

   • Core-             • Core-         • Core-  • Core-  • Core-           • Core-
   branded           branded          branded   branded  branded            branded
 Digital   web site           web site          web site   web site  web site             web site
(web-based/   
mobile)  • Non-core     • Non-core         • Hyper-local  • Hyper-local        • Hyper-local   • Hyper-local
   branded           branded                web site    web site web site            web site
   web site           web site         
  
  • Podcasts      • Podcasts

   Figure 4: Illustrative Life-stage Product Portfolio
Note:  Multiple free and alternative publications may be necessary, depending on targets and their needs.

Another essentialcaveat to remember, and which should serve as a guiding principle in any product development pro-
cess, is that there are sizeable investments required to maintain and establish brands.  Investments should be made wisely 
to achieve solid reach across priority segments with products and services that engage consumers and help grow the busi-
nesses of advertisers seeking local audiences.

5) It is important to recognize that this approach is very diff erent from the way newspapers have tradition-

ally gone about audience development and will require a change management process to be put in place.

Implementing a segmentation approach to audience, advertiser and product development strategies will require a change 
in the way most newspaper organizations think about opportunities.  A structured change management program should be 
pursued to support the strategic and tactical initiatives that emerge from employing an audience segmentation framework.

As Larry Bossidy, chairman of Honeywell Corporation and author of the bestselling business guide, Execution: Th e Disci-
pline of Getting Th ings Done, once famously remarked:  “Show me a great company, and I’ll show you one that has radically 
changed itself and is looking forward to the opportunity of doing so again.”

Th ere are many myths about change management.  Some believe that to convert to an audience-driven segmentation phi-
losophy, the best course might be to implement a “corporate culture” training program to educate and redirect the work-
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force.  Alternatively, others believe that change management comes from changing behavior at the individual level – such 
as modifying incentives or recruiting new employees with more appropriate skill sets.

However, eff ective transformational change is not brought about by programs focused on changing culture, attitudes or 
behavior.  To change the output of an organization, a company must change the work.  Th e day-to-day activities expected 
of employees must be reinvented to achieve the new strategic goals of the organization.

One of the most eff ective ways to change the work of an organization is through a process called “task alignment.”  Task 
alignment involves identifying the work steps that need to be accomplished to meet new strategic objectives of the organi-
zation, and then breaking those steps into “activities.”  Once those work steps have been identifi ed, they can be re-grouped 
into new jobs that break apart pre-conceived notions and expectations from the old organization.  Only aft er new jobs 
have been re-invented is it appropriate to identify the right people with the most relevant skill sets to fi ll the new jobs. [See 
Figure 5]

 

    Figure 5:  Illustrative Task Alignment Process

As an illustration of how the “task alignment” technique might support a cultural shift  toward a more audience-centric 
organization, a news organization could designate a key executive to serve as the “audience advocate” for a high-priority 
audience segment – such as the Upper-Income Family segment.  Rather than residing in a traditional newspaper functional 
division, this “advocate” would have cross-functional responsibilities bolstered by a high degree of authority and account-
ability in order to ensure eff ectiveness.

Th e Upper-Income Family advocate could function as the voice of that consumer segment for the organization, work-
ing fi rst with the newsroom to steer product and content strategies to meet the “jobs to be done” that this segment requires 
from its news and information sources.  Th e advocate would personally be responsible for consumer research about the 
segment, and express the fi ndings from that research in an actionable way for his or her colleagues in other functional 
areas.  Additionally, the advocate might work with the advertising department in order to improve marketing strategies so 
that the sales force can serve as a true partner to their advertisers, educating them on the advertising information needs of 
their target audience.  

Furthermore, the advocate could partner with the circulation marketing department to design the most appropriate 
communications and off ers for the Upper-Income Family segment.  Th e advocate could help identify the service require-
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ments of this segment in order to ensure they are being serviced to the level of their expectations (for example, can they 
pay their bill online?).   Ultimately, the advocate might be incentivized based upon improved readership within the Upper-
Income Family segment, as well as incremental revenues from key advertisers targeted at those consumers.  

Th e result of these “task alignment” practices would be an organization that has refocused resources, thought and energy 
toward the high-profi le audience segments.

As Albert Einstein is thought to have said, “Insanity is doing the same thing over and over again and expecting diff er-
ent results.”  In order to execute ambitious new audience-centric strategies, newspaper organizations will have to change 
the day-to-day activities at the most basic level of the company.  Only by changing the work – and being prepared to do so 
routinely – will newspaper companies be able to achieve the nimble, dynamic, customer-centric approach that is necessary 
to survive in today’s competitive marketplace.

Conclusion 

Understanding customers’ behavior is critical to the design and implementation of eff ective business development and 
marketing strategies.  Segmenting the market by life stage is one such approach.  Life stages provide intuitive segments, 
which are easy to understand and communicate.   Additionally, many advertisers also speak in terms of consumer life 
stages when they target marketing to young people or families.

A life stage is a particular segment of the population that behaves similarly as consumers of media and products.  When 
segmenting by life stage, remember that age, the presence of children living at home and household income levels are key 
predictors.  Th eir infl uence is especially relevant in terms of how consumers spend money and free time.

Marketplace data to create a life-stage segmentation scheme is typically readily available; many newspapers already 
gather strategic information such as household demographics and media usage; if necessary, gaps in marketplace knowl-
edge can be fi lled from outside research providers or through research fi elded directly by the newspaper organization.  

For newspaper companies, life-stage segmentation can be crucial in helping to identify high-priority consumers and how 
resources should be re-allocated around them.  Additional research may be necessary in order to understand the needs of 
key segments and the “jobs to be done.”  A product portfolio will also need to be created, addressing such key questions as 
where does the core newspaper fi t in the strategy and what new or niche products will need to be developed.

Furthermore, a structured change management program may need to be implemented in order to support the strategic 
and tactical initiatives that emerge from employing an audience segmentation framework.  Designate key executives to 
serve as the “audience advocate” for the high-priority segments.

It is clear there are many likely transformations within the marketplace, as well as major uncertainties that will infl uence 
the media business.  Th e next several years can bring great opportunities to those newspapers that embrace new tactics and 
tools, and invest to compete in this new environment. 
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